
 
 

First Edition Current Rulings Document 

(04 Feb 2019) 
Current Rulings are periodic updates to the First Edition Rulebook, including 
changes, clarifications, and situations it does not address. Current Rulings are 
an official supplement to the Glossary and should be used by tournament 
directors in making tournament rulings. (The rulebook is intended for beginners 
and should not be used for rulings.) 

Answers given by official Continuing Committee representatives are not official 
until included in an official rules document such as the Current Rulings, Official 
Clarifications, or Official Rulings. Such answers are highly recommended for use 
by tournament directors, but the Tournament Director always has the final 

authority on rulings. 

This document contains all Current Rulings issued since the Glossary v1.9.5. 
Entries that are new, changed, or expanded since the last Current Rulings 
document are marked with an asterisk (*) before the topic and in red text. 

These rulings are effective immediately. 

For additional resources or to find answers to your questions, please visit 
http://www.trekcc.org.

RULINGS – General 

 
*conversion rules – delete this entry 
 
*converted card indicator – replace this entry with:  

the gray bar at the bottom left corner of some cards was used to indicate 
information about a card's relationship with a corresponding backwards-
compatible card from the Star Trek CCG, Second Edition. Backwards 
compatibility is no longer supported, so this indicator is no longer used. 

 
*converted cards – delete this entry 
 
*Exposed - A ship is exposed when it is undocked, uncloaked, unphased, and 
not landed or carried. 
 
facility commander - replace this entry with "see matching commander." 
 
matching commander – A personnel is a matching commander for a ship or 

facility if either card both names the other in lore and states that that 
personnel is (or was) the commander or captain of that ship or facility. (Also, 
a few personnel, such as Rinnak Pire and Regent Worf, have special game 
text that allows them to act as, or assign another personnel as, a matching 
commander.) The term "facility commander" is a facility's matching 
commander. 
 
For example, Worf (First Contact) and Kudak'Etan are both matching 
commanders for all ship cards with the title U.S.S. Defiant, but not Stolen 
Defiant. All cards with the title "Benjamin Sisko" are matching commanders 
for U.S.S. Sao Paulo — but substitutes like Ben Sisko and The Emissary are 
not. See named in lore.  
 
A statement that a ship "transported" or was "used by" a personnel does not 
qualify that personnel as a matching commander. Kivas Fajo is not a matching 
commander for Zibalian Transport, but he is matching commander of Jovis. 
Unless otherwise specified (e.g., Cha’Joh), a ship or facility can only gain 
benefits from one matching commander at a time. To gain matching 
commander benefits, the matching commander must not be disabled, in 
stasis, or under "house arrest".   
 
A few ambiguous cases require clarification: Dathon is a matching 
commander for Tama. Dukat is a facility commander of Terok Nor. The 
Intendant is a facility commander for Mirror Terok Nor, but not Terok Nor in 
the Alpha Quadrant.  

 
*mirror universe – replaces the second paragraph with: 

When lore or game text refers to a planet by name, it applies only to the 
normal-universe version of that planet, unless the referring card contains the 
[MQ] icon. If the referring card does have the [MQ] icon anywhere (even as 
gametext), then it applies to the mirror universe version of the planet. For 
example, The City of B'Hala may seed only at the Alpha Quadrant version of 
Bajor (Alter Records); Mirror Terok Nor, which has the [MQ] icon, may seed 
only at the [MQ] version of Bajor (Disrupt Alliance). 

 
*mission attempt – delete the example about Benjamin Sisko, Bold Captain 

in paragraph 11.  

 
 
*multi-affiliation - at the end of the fourth paragraph, add:  

If a card gains an affiliation (without losing its prior affiliations), it functions 
as a multi-affiliation card including the new affiliation. 

 
*named in lore – add this as paragraph 2: 

A planet is named in the lore of another card if the lore refers to the location 
text of that planet mission (see mirror universe).  

 
*printed number - Cards that increase each "printed number" on another card 
affect all forms of numbers. "1" becomes "2", "one" becomes "two", 
"[countdown:1]" becomes "[countdown:2]," and "first" becomes "second". See 
Rascals. 
 
*Rascals - when affected by Shades of Gray: Despair, Youth replaces the 
second-listed skill, and personnel who do not have a second skill are unaffected.  
 
*revised text – delete the sentence about conversion rules.  
 
romantic partner – add “bride” to the list of qualifying terms. 
 
* scouting locations – change the second bullet point to: 

Gender-related requirements and targets of non-Borg-related dilemmas  
cannot be met by Borg affiliation cards. If there is an alternative which is not 
gender-related, the Borg must try to meet that; otherwise discard the 
dilemma. 
 

*Second Edition Cards – delete this entry 
 
*species –  delete the first item from the numbered list (and re-number the 

rest). Also delete the bulleted item “Phlox is Denobulan.” 
  

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 



 
Rulings Awaiting Errata 

 
 
Ignore the Glossary entry for Edo Probe and do the following instead: If 

playing Borg affiliation, discard dilemma (neither choice is relevant). 
Otherwise, make choice when you first encounter dilemma. If you choose to 
abandon mission attempt, replace dilemma under mission. You may not 
reattempt until any player has completed a different mission. AT/crew is not 
"stopped" but cannot continue here. When you do reattempt, discard the 
dilemma; you do not re-encounter it. If your opponent attempts this mission 
before you reattempt, he/she does encounter it and must make the same 
choice. . If you choose to continue, and you complete the mission this turn 
(with any AT/crew), discard the dilemma. If you do not complete mission 
this turn, place the dilemma in your bonus point area. 

 

Temporary Rulings (Pending Final Wording) 
 
 
Stops by different dilemmas create different crews / away teams. 
 
The specific requirement on Samaritan Snare (Federation must attempt this 

mission) overrides the OTF rule against attempting an opponent's mission. 
 
The "do nothing" part of Cytherians does not prevent other required actions. 
 
A Cytherians "shortcut" must directly result in shortened travel. For example, 

using Cytherians-affected Two of Nineteen's skill to download a Transwarp 
Network Gateway to move between two gateways is legal. But downloading 
to hand, or to build a new gateway, is not legal, as neither directly results in 
shortening travel. 
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